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Joseph Chamberlain Sixth Form College 
 
Financial Statements for the Year ended 31 July 2023 
 
Members Report  
 
NATURE, OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGIES: 
 
The members present their report and the audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 July 2023. 
 
Legal status 
 
The Corporation was established under The Further and Higher Education Act 1992 for the purpose of conducting 
the affairs of Joseph Chamberlain Sixth Form College. The College is an exempt charity for the purposes of Part 
3 of the Charities Act 2011. 
 
Mission 
 
"To provide an exceptional educational experience that results in significantly better futures for all of our students”. 
  
Public Benefit  
 
The College is an exempt charity under Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011 and is regulated by the Secretary of State 
for Education. The members of the Governing Body, who are trustees of the charity, are disclosed on page 18. 
 
In setting and reviewing the College’s strategic objectives, the Governing Body has had due regard for the Charity  
Commission’s guidance on public benefit and particularly upon its supplementary guidance on the advancement of 
education. The guidance sets out the requirement that all organisations wishing to be recognised as charities must 
demonstrate, explicitly, that their aims are for the public benefit. 
 
In delivering its mission, the College provides the following identifiable public benefits through the advancement 
of education to c3,500 students including c20 students with high-needs. The College provides courses without 
charging to young people and adults taking English and Maths courses. The College is committed to providing 
information, advice and guidance to the students it enrols and to finding suitable courses for as many students as 
possible regardless of their education background. The College has identified the following key public benefits:- 

• High quality teaching 
• Tackling social exclusion 
• Excellent record of facilitating progression to higher education, further training and employment 
• Excellent pastoral support for students 
• Work related placements and links with employers 
• Links with Local Enterprise Partnerships (LEP’s) 

Implementation of strategic plan 
 
We have now completed the next Strategic Plan covering 2022 to 2024. 
Our strategic priorities and associated objectives, seek to realise the mission statement, thereby ensuring that all 
Joseph Chamberlain College students experience an education of the highest quality and, as a result, have 
considerably improved future prospects. Our eight strategic priorities are: 

The College’s new strategic ambitions are:   
 

1. As the largest provider of academic provision in the city, we will retain our highly successful distinct 
sixth form College identity and ethos, being recognized as an excellent choice for all school leavers 
who wish to progress to Higher Education in the future. To achieve this, we will: 

1a    Always preserve our identity and character as a Sixth Form by having confidence in what we offer the     
        students of Birmingham 
1b    Continue to offer a broad academic and classroom-based vocational sixth-form curriculum that meets 
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NATURE, OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGIES (continued) 
 
Implementation of strategic plan (continued)         
 
        the needs and aspirations of all our students 
1c    Ensure that our curriculum offer remains flexible and responsive to national curriculum reforms, whilst  
        firmly retaining the educational character of a Sixth Form College 

        1d    Provide expert guidance and an enhanced careers education programme to support student ambition  
                and the achievement of aspirational destination goals. 
 
 

2. We will prioritise securing high levels of academic success for all students so that they have 
significantly greater choices in the next stage of their education and in later life, regardless of prior 
experience or attainment. To achieve this, we will: 

2a    Maintain the excellent student qualification outcomes, above provider averages, for which Joseph  
        Chamberlain College is now known. 
2b    Continue to ensure that the progress all of our students make from their starting points is excellent, as  
        indicated by a range of value-added performance measures. 
2c    Ensure that any small pockets of “less than good” provision is improved rapidly through robust  
        evaluation, action and careful monitoring to success. 
2d    Aim to ensure that all our students are very well prepared to move on to aspirational programmes, the  
        vast majority of which will be in higher education. 

 
3. We will ensure that learning, teaching and assessments are consistently excellent across all areas of 

the College, providing students with challenging, stimulating and inspirational lessons that secure 
their rapid progress. To achieve this, we will: 

3a   Continue to ensure that our College is a place where great teachers want to teach, develop their expertise,  
       lead and build a career. 
3b   Ensure that all aspects of teaching and assessment focus relentlessly on embedding the knowledge,  
       understanding and skills that students need to achieve boundless academic goals. 
3c   Embrace stretch, struggle and challenge in all lessons so that learning is maximised and students develop  
       a strong sense of ownership of their work and the progress they make. 
3d   Ensure that our students have the higher study skills to enable them to reach their full potential and create  
       further opportunities to extend their literacy, recognising that this is essential for academic success. 

 
4. We will support our students with compassion, and enhance their lives by ensuring that the student 

experience develops in them the qualities and skills to embrace future challenges, achieving their full 
potential along the way. To achieve this, we will: 

4a   Provide outstanding wellbeing and welfare support to all students, helping them to overcome barriers to  
       learning, equipping them with emotional resilience and keeping them safe at all times. 
4b   Develop an inspiring and varied enrichment and enhancement programme that builds our students’  
       motivation, confidence, independence and self-belief, whilst also adding significantly to their social  
       and cultural capital. 
4c   Focus on the holistic character development of our students so that they become professional, responsible  
       independent young adults who take pride in and feel accountable for what they do and achieve. 
4d   Enhance the students’ experience of, and encounters with, the world of work by further developing our  
       links with business, the local community and partners in industry who will support and nurture the talent  
       of our young people. 
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NATURE, OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGIES (continued) 
 
Implementation of strategic plan (continued) 
 

5. We will establish a talented hard-working and successful staff body who feel stimulated by their job, 
happy in the workplace and proud to be part of Joseph Chamberlain College. To achieve this, we will: 

5a   Ensure that all of our plans and decisions are informed by the widely acknowledged fact that the  
       continuing success of our students is secured through the positive development and care of our staff. 
5b   Commit to providing a range of high-quality training and research opportunities to enable staff at all  
       stages of their career to build their professional capital so that they can maintain the highest standards of  
       practice and develop successfully in their roles. 
5c   Position the College as an employer of choice by investing in a recruitment, recognition and retention  
       strategy that attracts and retains the very best people to fulfil our mission and purpose. 
5d   To do everything possible to ensure that all staff employed at the College enjoy work, get a great deal of  
       job satisfaction, feel cared for and know that their successes are recognised and valued. 

 
6. We will serve local adult learners by providing them with a range of high-quality community-based 

courses that develop their skills and confidence to help them unlock their true potential for the future. 
To achieve this, we will:  

        6a   Retain confidence in the importance and excellence of what we do for our adult students; providing  
               community-based ESOL and basic skills courses that help our students integrate fully into society and  
               better their lives. 
        6b   Raise the aspirations and ambitions of our adult students so that they aim for higher level programmes,  
               which we will offer in the health, childcare and education sectors. 
        6c   Foster even stronger links with our local communities, through education, events and outreach so that  
               adults across the city, who will benefit from the work we do and have the opportunity to access our high- 
               quality provision.  
        6d   Position our adult learning provision strategically so that we can contribute positively to the skills and  
               employment priorities of the West Midlands Combined Authority but meet the very specific needs of our  
               local adult population who choose to study with us. 
 
7     We will lead the business of the College with great efficiency so that our finances remain extremely     
       healthy for the future and the operations of our support services align closely with our mission and  
       purpose. To achieve this, we will: 
 
      7a    Retain very strong financial health through continued careful budgetary control, value for money exercises,  
             efficiency savings, successful strategies for additional income and the sensible investment of cash. 
     7b    Reach a final capacity of 2,800 sixth form students - a figure that will secure our financial health, create  
             capacity for the local growth in post-16 numbers and allow us to retain our supportive ethos of caring for  
             the individual. 
    7c     Establish consistency across all of our business support service areas so that they are high-performing,  
             efficient, embrace technology and understand how they contribute to the College’s mission and purpose. 
 
8    We will invest significantly in the development of the College estate so that all students and staff have 
access to exceptional accommodation , facilities and resources during their time with us. To achieve this, we 
will: 
    8a     Successfully deliver all components of a large-scale masterplan that comprises a £12m multi-phase  
             development of the college estate to both accommodate the significant growth in student numbers in recent      
             years and to provide additional capacity for future students. 
   8b      Invest significantly in the maintenance, repair, refresh and renovation of all college teaching, recreational.  
             study and utility facilities to provide modern specialist spaces in which to learn and work. 
   8c      Invest significantly in IT infrastructure and facilities so that students and staff have all the equipment, and  
            can develop the skills they need, to thrive in a digital present and future. 
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NATURE, OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGIES (continued) 
 
Implementation of strategic plan (continued) 
 
8d     Continue to explore options for the better accommodation of our adult learning programmes, particularly in  
         high-quality community venues across the city. 
 
The College is making significant progress in implementing and meeting all of the above objectives.  
 
 
Financial objectives 
 
The College’s financial objectives are: 
 

• to achieve a minimum 5% EBITDA surplus in 2022/23 and 2023/24 in order to support the completion 
of the Estates and IT medium term strategies, to provide sufficient resources to tackle movements in 
student numbers and implementing agreed pay increases. 

• to provide sufficient financial resources to prepare for anticipated OfSTED visit 
• to ensure that the College controlled Sports Centre achieves a minimum break-even outturn when any 

community use restarts  
• to have cash reserves to assist in managing the impact of any of the risks identified on pages 11-12 were 

they to occur 
• to have cash reserves to ensure that the College can meet its contribution to the current 

building/refurbishment projects 
• to ensure that sufficient teaching support resources are available to assist the teaching staff in delivering 

successful student outcomes whilst ensuring that staff costs do not exceed 65% of income excluding 
Franchise income 

A series of performance indicators have been agreed to monitor the successful implementation of the policies and 
to maintain the College’s financial health grade as outstanding. 
 
Under the ESFA approach to assessing the financial health of Colleges, the College is currently graded as 
outstanding. 
 
Performance Indicators for 2022/23 
                                                                         Target                           Achievement 
ESFA 16-18 student number target                   2,486                               2,541 
EBITDA  %                                                       7.77                                 14.74 
Current Ratio                                                      5.21                                  2.63 
Pay as % of income                                           60.57                               57.16 
 
The only target not met was the Current Ratio. One reason for the adverse performance is that Current Liabilities 
include DfE CIF Grant of £1,608k which was budgeted to be transferred to Long Term Liabilities when the phase 
4 new build was completed. This project has been delayed and will not be completed until January 2024. The 
second explanation is that the budgeted capital costs for phases 3 and 5 were significantly exceeded due to the 
additional costs arising from the late start caused by delays in obtaining planning permission. If we adjust for the 
Deferred Capital Grant position the Current Asset ratio rises to 4.07.   
 
The College is committed to observing the importance of the measures and indicators and is monitoring the 
financial indicators through the completion of the annual College Financial Forecast Return for the ESFA. The 
current official financial rating of Outstanding is considered an acceptable outcome. 
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FINANCIAL POSITION 
 
Financial results 
 
The College and its subsidiary companies generated an operating surplus before tax in the year of £1,966,000 
(2021/22: £1,192,000). The surplus includes FRS 102 pension costs of £253,000 (2021/22:£838,000) arising from 
the incorporation of the FRS 102 pension asset/liability. The remaining costs relating to the pension liability are 
recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. 
 
The College has been able to fund capital investments of £7,234,000 (2021/22: £2,032,000) from its cash reserves 
and external grants. 
 
The College and its subsidiary companies have income and expenditure reserves of £29,419,000 (2021/22: 
£24,607,000 and £27,180,000 respectively after adjusting for pension liability).  
 
The College wishes to maintain cash balances in order to create a contingency fund to support new building works 
and the need to finalise implementing the recommendations from the Building Condition Survey. The College is 
also mindful of the impact on cash reserves in 2023/24 and 2024/25 of the drop in September 2023 enrolment of 
16-18 students and the continuing uncertainty over the planned defunding of certain vocational  programmes. The 
Senior Leadership Team are carefully monitoring the position and have strategies in place should the need arise to 
reduce pay and non-pay expenditure to ensure that operating surpluses are maintained. 
 
The College has significant reliance on the education sector funding bodies, including the West Midlands 
Combined Authority, for its principal funding source, largely from recurrent grants. In 2022/23, the funding bodies 
provided 94.5% (2021/22: 95.7%) of the College’s total group income. The reduction is primarily down to the high 
level of investment income from bank deposits. 
 
The College has one subsidiary company, Joseph Chamberlain (Trading) Limited, having disposed of its 
shareholding in The College for International Citizenship CIC on 1 August 2022. 
 
The principal activity of Joseph Chamberlain (Trading) Limited was the community use of the on-campus Sports 
Centre, although this operation has been closed since March 2020 as a result of COVID and campus building 
works. There are no plans to process any future community Sports Centre use through this subsidiary company. 
 
In the year ended 31 July 2023, Joseph Chamberlain (Trading) Limited generated an operating deficit of £3,728, 
(2021/22: £7,032 deficit). 
 
In the year ended 31 July 2022, the College for International Citizenship CIC generated a deficit of £11,964.  
 
Treasury policies and objectives 
 
Treasury management is the management of the College’s cash flows, its banking, money market and capital 
market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum 
performance consistent with those risks. 
 
The College has a separate Treasury Management and Investment Policy in place. 
 
Short term borrowing for temporary revenue purposes, if applicable, would be authorised by the Chief Accounting 
Officer. Such arrangements are restricted by limits in the Financial Memorandum previously agreed with the LSC 
and subsequently transferred to the ESFA. All other borrowing, if applicable, would require the authorisation of 
the Corporation and would have to comply with the requirements of the current ESFA Condition of Funding 
Agreement. The College has no borrowings and has no plans to take out any borrowings. However should the 
position change than any borrowings would require approval and processing through the DfE as a public sector 
organisation.   
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FINANCIAL POSITION (continued) 
 
Financial results (continued) 
 
Cash flows 
 
The Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows on page 33 shows an overall out-flow of £4,438,000 (2021/22: 
£1,402,000 in-flow). Both of the above figures are impacted by the timing of Capital Expenditure payments and 
the transfers of funds into long term deposits. Overall bank and investment balances decreased by £2,590,000 
(2021/22: £2,498,000 increase). The out-flow was partly down to the high levels of Capital Expenditure. 
 
Reserves Policy 
 
The College has no formal Reserves Policy but recognises the importance of reserves in the financial stability of 
any organisation, and ensures that there are adequate reserves to support the College’s core activities. As at the 
Balance Sheet date the Income & Expenditure Reserve stands at £29,419,000 (2021/22: £24,607,000). It is the 
Corporation’s intention to increase reserves over the life of the strategic plan through the generation of annual 
operating surpluses. This year the Reserves figure has been increase by a substantial amount, over and above the 
operating surplus increase, due to the £2,573,000 reduction in the FRS102 pension valuation. 
 
 
CURRENT AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AND PERFORMANCE  
 
Student numbers 
 
In 2022/23 the College delivered ESFA funding of £13,768,288 which was £72,764 below the allocation figure of 
£13,841,052. The 16-18 actual learner numbers were 15 lower than the allocation. In terms of the West Midlands 
Combined Authority (WMCA) activity the College delivered an outturn figure of £2,202,523 excluding 
Discretionary Learner Support of £204,171 compared to the £2,172,102 total allocation. The clawback from 
2021/22 of £186,860 was transferred back into income in 2022/23.  
 
The College enrolments, including sub-contract recruited students, for 2022/23 can be summarised as follows: 
 

 
 
16-18 

Learners 
 
2,541 

   

19+    942    
Total 3,483 
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CURRENT AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AND PERFORMANCE 
(continued)  
 
Student achievements 
 
The A level achievement rate in 2022/23 was high again at 97.9% (2021/22-97.1%), with a high grade performance 
of 51% which puts the College in the top 25% of all schools and colleges nationally. Level 3 BTEC results showed 
a high pass rate of 97%, with high grade performance of 79% (2021/22-73%). 
 

 2023 2022 
 Achievement Rate Benchmark Achievement Rate Benchmark 
AS 81.9 80.6 88.4 70.5 
A 97.9 86.0 97.1 83.8 
BTEC National 94.2 83.5 91.1 89.1 
GCSE 90.6 87.7 97.5 90.6 

 
 
Measures of value added, for A level students demonstrated that the College retained its place in the top 25% of 
the country, with a quarter of students gaining a grade higher than they would at the average Sixth Form College. 
For BTEC students value added progress was equally strong. 
 
 
Curriculum developments 
 
The College continues to have a high reputation for serving students from a wide range of backgrounds, ages and 
abilities. It is continually reviewing its course offer to ensure that it matches the needs of its students. The 
introduction of an AS equivalent course in Medical Science is proving to be a highly successful development.  
 
The adult programme offer is also continually refined to meet WMCA priorities and more importantly the needs 
of the local communities. We are looking into developing some higher-level programmes and working 
collaboratively with other adult providers in the City. Our excellent partnership arrangement with the Birmingham 
Education Ethnic Advisory Service continues to serve local people in other areas of the City.  
 
The College also undertakes collaborative work with schools where appropriate. Opportunities are given to 
students from feeder schools to undertake work placements on the College site. The College also hosts the Work-
Related Learning Team which provides work placement opportunities to the main site students. Partnerships with 
a number of employers have been developed significantly this year. The College now has links with over 700 
employers. 
 
Strong links and partnerships with the Universities of Cambridge, Warwick, Coventry, Aston and Birmingham 
City continue to benefit students when applying to these institutions. The College is also a “valued partner” of the 
University of Birmingham’s A2B scheme. A large number of College students attend summer schools and visits 
to universities such as Birmingham, Cambridge and Oxford.  Students also participate in maths challenges and 
master classes at both Aston and Birmingham University.  
 
 
Payment performance 
 
The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998, which came into force on 1 November 1998, requires 
colleges, in the absence of agreement to the contrary, to make payments to suppliers within 30 days of either the 
provision of goods or services or the date on which the invoice was received. The target set by the Treasury for 
payment to suppliers within 30 days is 95 per cent. During the accounting period 1 August 2022 to 31 July 2023, 
the College paid 73.50% of supplier invoices representing 84.16% in value (2021/22-66.76% and 63.92%) of all 
its invoices within 30 days. Both figures are a significant improvement on the past four years. The College operates 
a weekly supplier BACS run to improve compliance with supplier payment terms. 
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 CURRENT AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AND PERFORMANCE 
(continued)  
 
Payment performance (continued) 
 
The College incurred no interest charges in respect of late payment for this period. 
 
 
Post Balance Sheet events 
The College is continuing to progress its major estates projects on the main campus.  
 
 
Trade union facility time  
The Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) Regulations 2017 require the College to publish 
information on facility time arrangements for trade union officials at the College. The table below reflects the 
position for the year ended 31 March 2022 and this was uploaded onto the College website in line with the 
Regulations.   

Numbers of employees who were TU officials in the relevant 
period 

FTE employee number 

                                              4                   3.40 

 
Percentage of time Number of employees 

0%                  0 

1-50%                  4 

51-99%                  0 

100%                  0 

 

Total cost of facility time        £7,840 
Total pay bill £8,679,130 
Percentage of total bill spent on facility time         0.09% 

 

 
 
 
 

Future developments 
 
The College recurrent grants from the ESFA and WMCA for 2023/24 have been confirmed at £14,809,138 and 
£2,400,000 respectively. The College has seen a c6% reduction in 16-18 student enrolments in September 2023 
which we believe is a combination of many individual factors. This will have an adverse impact on funding in 
2024/25 and 2025/26.  
 
 
 
 

Time spent on paid trade union activities as a 
percentage of total paid facility time 

          2.83% 
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CURRENT AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AND PERFORMANCE 
(continued)  
 
Future developments (continued) 
 
The College SLT and curriculum teams are already preparing for staffing requirements in those years in line with 
the reduction in student numbers. 
 
The College has completed phases 1, 2, 3 and 5 of  the refurbishment plans whilst phase 4 (creation of an additional 
fifteen classroom teaching block) will not now be completed until January 2024 following the insolvency of the 
main contractor in May 2023. A replacement contractor has now been identified and started work in early October 
2023 with a planned twelve week programme  
The College secured a CIF Grant of £2,010,000 towards the phase 4 project (original cost-c£5,400,000) although 
costs have significantly escalated since the 2021 estimate. The DfE have so far remitted 80% of the CIF Grant with 
the 20% balance due on completion. The shortfall after the Grant will be met from cash reserves.  
 
Phase 6 is the full landscaping of the main campus and work will commence after the new build has been 
completed. 
 
RESOURCES 
 
The College has various resources that it can deploy in pursuit of its strategic objectives. 
 
Tangible resources at £38,391,000 include the Main Campus and Orchard House teaching blocks together with the 
Sports Centre and BCA sites. The ongoing phase 4 construction costs are also included in this figure and shown 
as Assets under Construction in note 11 of the Notes to the Accounts. 
 
Financial 
 
The College and its subsidiary companies have £29,419,000 of net assets. At 31 July 2023, the College and 
subsidiary companies had no borrowings and cash and short- term deposits and investments of £11,496,000 
(2021/22: £14,086,000). 
 
People 
 
The College employs 218 people (expressed as full time equivalents), of whom 127 are front line teaching staff. 
 
Reputation 
 
The College has an excellent reputation locally and nationally. Maintaining a quality brand is essential for the 
College’s on-going success at attracting students and developing future external relationships. 
 
PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES 
 
The College has well developed strategies for managing risk and strives to embed risk management in all that it 
does. Risk management processes are designed to protect its assets, reputation and financial stability. The 
Governing Body has overall responsibility for risk management and its approach to managing risks and internal 
controls is explained in the Statement of Corporate Governance. 
 
The College now has a process of asking individual departments to be responsible for risk management in their 
areas and the consolidated register is reviewed by the Senior Leadership Team. 
 
A risk register is maintained at the College level, which is reviewed at least termly by the Audit Committee and 
more frequently where necessary. The risk register identifies the key risks, the probability of those risks occurring, 
their potential impact on the College and the actions being taken to reduce and mitigate the risks. Risks are 
prioritised using a consistent scoring system. 
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (continued) 
 
The College is in the process of creating a secondary Fraud Risk Register. 
 
Outlined below is a description of the principal risk factors that may affect the College. Not all the factors are 
within the College’s control. Other factors besides those listed below may also adversely affect the College. 

Risk Impact Mitigation measure 
Failure of Government to sustain 
funding increases implemented in 
2023/24 and 2024/25 in future 
years 

Potential reduction in operating 
surplus with the College having to 
prioritise resource requests. The 
position will however be affected 
by Government spending plans.  

Continue to promote the College’s 
Outstanding OfSTED grade more 
effectively and robustly. Consider 
whether our social media marketing 
can be improved. 
Review level of pastoral support. 
Re-visit the College decision to 
continue with a four subject AS level 
curriculum offer. 

Removal of Teachers Pensions 
Grant from August 2024 

The ESFA Teachers Pensions 
Grant is worth c£425k per annum 
outweighing the 2024/25 
EBITDA budgeted surplus of 
£267k.  

Lobby Government through the 
SFCA and AoC to maintain funding 
of the substantial increase in the 
Teachers Pension Scheme employer 
contributions especially with an 
impending contribution increase in 
2024. The SLT would also have to 
seriously review staffing levels in 
particular the area of pastoral 
support. There is an indication that 
the DfE will fund the 2024 increase. 

Inflation The current position with scale 
point pay changes for 2023/24 has 
now been agreed with teaching 
and support staff unions. The 
College had budgeted for a 5% 
increase in all scale points with 
the final agreement based on a 
general 6.5% scale point increase.  
This offer would  cost the College 
c£172k with a further impact on 
base cost for 2024/25. However 
the DfE has provided additional 
funding to cover the increased pay 
costs.  

The College from a financial point 
of view has reserves to cover the 
short-term issues and helpfully has 
no borrowings. However, as any 
increases are consolidated then there 
is a future impact as well. The SLT 
would need to closely look at 
September 2023 recruitment and in 
particular the number of pastoral 
support staff. The College has 
demonstrated that it can manage 
student number fluctuations as front 
line teaching staff were five down on 
2022/23 numbers. 

Delay/increased costs from 
implementing phase 4 of the 
Estates Strategy 

Reduction in cash reserves and the 
resultant capacity issues. 

College has engaged multi skilled 
local project managers to work with 
replacement building contractor to 
complete new build.  
Secondary option to utilise the BCA 
site for any short-term temporary 
classroom requirements.    
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (continued) 
 

Further reduction in student 
numbers 

Lower College surpluses and cash 
reserves. 

In depth review of marketing 
strategies and review of curriculum 
offer (3/4 A levels). The College 
can demonstrate that they have 
control over teaching numbers as 
evidenced by the FTE numbers in 
note 7.   

ONS reclassification of SFC’s as 
public sector 

As College has no borrowings then 
no significant immediate impact. 

In the longer term the College may 
consider Academisation as the 
most suitable response to being 
classified as public sector although 
all other options will be explored 
by  the Governing Body. 

 
STREAMLINED ENERGY AND CARBON REPORTING 
 
The college is committed to reducing its carbon emissions and has taken the following measures in the year to 
improve energy efficiency: 

• To continue with the changeover to LED lighting in all areas of the College 

• To ensure that our new teaching block due to be completed in December 2023/January 2024 has solar 
panels fitted. Our new car parking arrangements at 312 Moseley Road has a number of electric charging 
points. 

The college’s greenhouse gas emissions and energy use for the period are set out below: 

UK Greenhouse gas emissions and energy use data for the period 1 August 2022 to 
31 July 2023 

1 August 2021 to 
31 July 2022 

Energy consumption used to calculate emissions (kWh) 
Energy consumption breakdown (kwh) 
Gas                                                                    2,167,000                                                                                          
Electricity                                                          1,284,000                                                                   
Transport fuel                                                         2,725               
                                                                           3,453,725 
 

3,453,725 3,362,500 

Scope 1 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e 
Gas consumption 
Owned transport 
Total 

 
395.61 

0.17 
395.78 

 
373.11 

0.28 
373.39 

Scope 2 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e 
Purchased electricity 

 
265.88 

 
254.10 

Scope 3 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e 
Business travel in employee owned vehicles 

 
0.75 

 
0.96 

Total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e 
 

662.41 628.45 

Intensity ratio 
Metric tonnes CO2e per staff member 
 

 
3.04 

 
2.62 
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STREAMLINED ENERGY AND CARBON REPORTING (continued) 
 
Qualification and reporting methodology 

 
We have followed the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines. We have also used the 
GHG Reporting Protocol – Corporate Standard and have used the 2023 UK Government's Conversion 
Factors for Company Reporting. 
  
Intensity ratio 
The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e per staff member, the 
recommended ratio for the sector. 

 
STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIPS 
 
The College has many stakeholders including: 

• Its current, future and past students and their parents 
• Student Voice 
• Education Sector Funding Bodies 
• Staff and their trade union representatives 
• Local employers 
• West Midlands Combined Mayoral Authority 
• Birmingham City Council 
• The local community & partner organisations 
• Feeder schools 
• Other FE Institutions and local sixth form colleges 
• Higher education institutions 

 
 
The College recognises the importance of these relationships and engages in regular communication through a 
variety of methods and media.   
 
Parents are communicated with in writing and through social media and invited to the College throughout the year 
to discuss progress and to “coffee mornings”.   
 
Students, parents, staff, local business and the Local Authority are all represented on the College Governing Body. 
 
Members of the College staff have a programme of visits to feeder schools. 
 
The College is an active member of the Association of Colleges (AoC), the Sixth Form Colleges Association 
(SFCA) and Colleges West Midlands. 
 
The use of social media technologies is continually being expanded when communicating with current and 
potential students. 
 
 
Equal opportunities and employment of disabled persons 
 
The College is proud of its commitment to ensuring equality of opportunity for all who learn and work at the 
College. The College respects and values differences in race, gender, sexual orientation, physical ability, religion 
or belief and age. The College has in place policies to address these issues and has a coordinating Equality and 
Diversity Committee which has oversight of the implementation, monitoring and development of policy and  
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STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIPS (continued) 
 
Equal opportunities and employment of disabled persons (continued) 
 
reports to the Corporation. An annual Equality and Diversity Report is prepared each year for consideration by the 
Corporation. 
 
The College continues to support and fund an Equality and Diversity Co-ordinator. 
 
The College’s Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Policy, including its Equalities Policies, is published on the 
College’s website. 
 
The College considers all applications from disabled persons and offers an interview to all disabled people who 
meet the job and person specification for any post. Where existing employees become disabled, every effort is 
made to ensure that their employment at the College continues.  An equalities action plan setting clear targets is 
published each year and the identified actions are monitored by the Governing Body. This complies with Equality 
legislation. 
 
In 2018, the College received the Silver Award from UK Investor in Equality & Diversity (UKIED). The award 
recognises the College achievements in establishing and promoting equality & diversity, safeguarding and equal 
opportunities throughout the College.  
 
Disability statement 
 
The College is committed to a policy of responding to the general needs of the community and the specific need 
of the individual. Disability or additional educational needs shall be defined as learning requirements that need 
support or provision additional to or different from that which is normally available. The College has published a 
policy statement in relation to students with learning difficulties or disability. The main provisions of this statement 
include: 

• to ensure increased access to the College from all sections of the community, regular liaison with 
schools, community groups, careers and guidance services and agencies working with those with 
specific learning difficulties and / or disabilities (SLDD) will be promoted and supported. 

 
• the College application procedure will offer applicants the opportunity to provide information and 

discuss any special learning difficulty or disability that affects them. However, the College recognises 
that not all students may be willing or able to do this and that it is the responsibility of the College to 
ensure that alternative procedures are in place to identify and assess potential learning difficulties 
and that other opportunities exist to enable students to disclose any SLDD. 

 
• in the event of a place not being offered to a student with a learning difficulty or disability, a record 

will be kept of the reasons given. Where possible, alternative options and guidance will be given in 
liaison with Prospects and Social Services, etc. 

 
• when a student who wishes to enrol at this College cannot be admitted because the College cannot 

meet her or his learning needs, this information will be put before the Corporation. 
 

• advice will be available to students with disabilities or additional learning needs before, during and 
at the end of their course so that students can examine their individual needs within their progression 
route. 

 
Approach to students with disabilities 
 
An important part of the College relocation project, a full access audit was undertaken and the facilities provided 
fully comply with all access legislation.  Other appropriate measures are taken such as the use of specialist furniture 
and software. 
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KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL, CORPORATION and PROFESSIONAL 
ADVISERS 
 
Financial Statement and reporting accountants: RSM UK Audit LLP 
  103 Colmore Row 

Birmingham 
B3 3AG 

 
Internal auditors:                               Validera (formerly HW Controls and Assurance) 
      30 Camp Road 
      Farnborough 
      GU14 6EW 
             
Bankers:     Barclays Bank 
      POBox 3333 
      One Snowhill 
      Snowhill Queensway 
                                                                                       Birmingham 
                                                                                       B3 2WN                                                                                       
 
Solicitors:     Eversheds 
      115 Colmore Row 
      Birmingham  
      B3 3AL 
 
                 Shoosmiths LLP 
                           103 Colmore Row 
                                                                                      Birmingham 
                            B3 3AG  
                            
       
 
Key Management Personnel 
 
Key Management Personnel were represented by the following in 2022/23: 
 
Mr Tony Day 
Mr Patrick O’Donohue 
Mrs Rosie Shale 
Mrs Joanne Lawrence 
Mr Norman MacDonald 
Mrs Yasmin Juwle 
M/A Anna Richards 
 
Board of Governors 
 
A full list of Members of the Corporation is given on page 18 of these Financial Statements. Mrs A Barker acted 
as Clerk to the Corporation throughout the financial year and up to 31 October 2023 when she retired. Hayley 
Griffiths-Governance Professional and Senior College Administrator has been appointed to take over the role from 
1 November 2023.  
 



Joseph Chamberlain Sixth Form College 17 
 
Financial Statements for the Year ended 31 July 2023 
  
Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control  
 

 
 

The following statement is provided to enable readers of the annual report and accounts of the College to obtain a 
better understanding of its governance and legal structure. This statement covers the period from 1 August 2022 to 
31 July 2023 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and Financial Statements. 
 
The College endeavours to conduct its business: 
 

1. in accordance with the Seven Principles identified by the Committee on Standards in Public Life 
(selflessness, integrity, objectivity, accountability, openness, honesty and leadership); 

2. having due regard to the Association of Colleges Code of Good Governance for English Colleges (“the 
Code”) and similar Codes from elsewhere, for example, the Charity Commission; 

The College is committed to exhibiting best practice in all aspects of corporate governance. We have not adopted 
any one of the Corporate Governance codes available. However, we have reported on our Corporate Governance 
arrangements by drawing upon best practice available, including those aspects of the Governance Code we consider 
to be relevant to the sixth form college education sector and best practice. 
 
The Corporation recognises that, as a body entrusted with both public and private funds, it has a particular duty to 
observe the highest standards of corporate governance at all times. The College has engaged external consultants in 
2023/24 to review our governance arrangements.  
 
The College is an exempt charity within the meaning of Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011. The Governors, who are 
also Trustees for the purposes of the Charities Act 2011, confirm that they have had due regard for the Charity 
Commission’s guidance on public benefit and that the required statements appear elsewhere in these Financial 
Statements. 
 
The College has ensured that it has in place policies, procedures and approval processes in place to comply with the 
additional requirements following the 29 November 2022 re-classification of the College as a public sector 
organisation. Since the 29 November 2022 and up to the date of signing these Financial Statements there have been 
no instances where Department for Education (DfE) approval has been required.   
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The CORPORATION 
 
The members who served the Corporation throughout the year and up to the date of signature of this report were as 
follows: 
  

Name Date of 
Appointment 

Term of 
Office 

Date of  
Termination 

Status of 
Appointment 

Committees served Full Board 
Attendance 
2022-23 
 (maximum 3) 

Tony Day 01/01/2019   Ex-officio 
  Until leaves post 

 Principal Finance & Resources 
(F&R), Search and 
Curriculum, Quality & 
Learning (CQL) 

         2 

Thelma Probert 
 

19/10/2008 4 years initial term 
now extended to 
16/10/2024 

 Independent  F&R, CQL and Chair of 
Remuneration 

         3 

Sharon Birdi 01/06/2021 4 years initial term 
revised to 2 years 
from 01/09/2022 as 
Co-opted Governor 

 Co-opted Audit Committee         - 

Sue Anderson-Chair 19/10/2008 4 years initial term 
now extended to 
16/10/2024 

 Independent Chair: Corporation, 
F&R, and Search. 
Member. Remuneration 
and CQL 
 

        3 

Sarah Harwood 23/03/2021 4 years initial term  Teaching Staff 
Governor 

          3 

Winsome Sherriffe 18/05/2010 4 years extended to 
16/05/2022 

13/12/2022 Support Staff 
Governor 

          1 

Youssef Kamir 01/03/2023 4 years initial term  Support Staff 
Governor 

          2 

Wendy Sharples 18/05/2010 4 years extended to 
16/05/2026 

 Independent Chair: CQL 
Member- Search 

         3 

Iyanu Onalaja 15/12/2020 4 years initial term    Independent           2 
David Jones 01/10/2019 2 years initial term 

extended to 
30/11/2023 

 Co-opted Audit          - 

Rubina Chaudary 06/12/2011 4 years now 
extended to 
31/07/2024 

 Independent Chair Audit 
 

        3 

David Farrow-Vice 
Chair 

01/10/2018 4 years initial term 
now extended to 
30/09/2026 

  Independent F&R         3 

David Lee  01/03/2018 4 years initial term 
now extended to 
28/02/2026 

  Independent F&R          2 

Parminder Garcha 01/05/2019 4 years to 
30/04/2023 

30/04/2023 Independent           1 

Philip Leyland 01/05/2019 4 years initial term 
revised to 2 years 
from 01/09/2023 as 
Co-opted Governor 

 Independent F&R          1 

Saqib Rashid 01/06/2021 4 years initial term  Independent F&R          3 
Shozzol Miah 21/06/2022 4 years initial term  Independent Audit          2 
Zain Bashir 01/10/2022 1 year 30/06/2023 Student member           1 
Hamza Ali Hussain 01/10/2022 1 year 30/06/2023 Student member           1 
Habib Rahman 21/12/2012 Extended to 

20/12/2024 
 Co-opted  Search & Remuneration          - 
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The CORPORATION (continued) 
 
Whilst parent/carer/guardian governors are nominated to the Corporation for a period of one year, if their 
child/children leave/s the College before the end of the one-year period, their term of office ends at the next full 
Corporation meeting. 
 
The staff elects staff governors for a period of four years, but their term of office ends if they leave the employment 
of the College before the end of the four-year period.  
 
The following persons have been co-opted to the subcommittees of the Corporation, as shown, to provide 
additional expertise: 
 
Mr. H. Rahman - Search and Remuneration Committees 
 
Mr D Jones   - Audit Committee 
 
Mrs Sharon Birdi – Audit Committee 
 
It is the Corporation’s responsibility to bring independent judgement to bear on issues of strategy, performance, 
resources and standards of conduct. 
 
The Corporation is provided with regular and timely information on the overall financial performance of the 
College together with other information such as performance against funding targets, proposed capital expenditure, 
quality matters and personnel related matters such as health and safety and environmental issues. A Safeguarding 
report is also regularly reported to the Corporation. 
 
The Corporation when appropriate meets at least once each term. 
 
The Corporation conducts its business through a number of committees. Each committee has terms of reference, 
which have been approved by the Corporation. These committees are finance and resources, curriculum, quality  
and learning, remuneration, search and audit. Full minutes of all meetings, except those deemed to be confidential 
by the Corporation, are available on the College’s website (jcc.ac.uk) or from the Clerk to the Corporation at: 
 
  Joseph Chamberlain Sixth Form College 
  1 Belgrave Road 
  Birmingham 
                             B12 9FF 
 
The Clerk to the Corporation maintains a register of financial and personal interests of the governors. The register 
is available for inspection at the above address. 
 
All governors are able to take independent professional advice in furtherance of their duties at the College’s 
expense and have access to the Clerk to the Corporation, who is responsible to the Board for ensuring that all 
applicable procedures and regulations are complied with. The appointment, evaluation and removal of the Clerk 
are matters for the Corporation as a whole. 
 
Formal agendas, papers and reports are supplied to the governors in a timely manner, prior to Board meetings. 
Briefings are also provided on an ad-hoc basis. 
 
The Corporation has a strong and independent non-executive element and no individual or group dominates its 
decision making process. The Corporation considers that each of its non-executive members is independent of 
management and free from any business or other relationship which could materially interfere with the exercise of 
their independent judgement. 
 
There is a clear division of responsibility in that the roles of the Chair of the Corporation and the Chief Accounting 
Officer of the College are separate. 
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Appointments to the Corporation 
 
Any new appointments to the Corporation are a matter for the consideration of the Corporation as a whole. The 
Corporation has a Search Committee comprising the Chair of the Corporation, the Principal, two other members 
of the Corporation and a co-opted member from the local community, which is responsible for the selection and 
nomination of any potential new member for the Corporation’s consideration. The Corporation is responsible for 
ensuring that appropriate training is provided as required. 

Members of the Corporation are normally appointed for a term of office not exceeding 4 years, upon which they 
may be re-elected. In the case of four Governors their tenure as Governors has exceeded the recommended 8 year 
period. In each case, the value of their individual expertise, experience and knowledge have been felt to outweigh 
the case to terminate their tenure.  

Remuneration Committee 
 
The College’s terms of reference indicate that the Remuneration Committee should comprise four members of the 
Corporation, excluding staff and student Governors. The Chair of this Committee is the Chair of the main 
Corporation. The members who served on this Committee throughout the year to 31 July 2023 are noted on page 
18. 

The Committee’s responsibilities are to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration and benefits of 
the Chief Accounting Officer and any other senior post holders. 

Details of the remuneration for the year ended 31 July 2023 are set out in note 7 to the Financial Statements. 

Audit Committee 
 
The College’s terms of reference indicate that the Audit Committee should comprise of five members of the 
Corporation. The Chair of the Corporation, members of the Finance & Resources Committee, Staff Governors and 
the Chief Accounting Officer are excluded from membership of the Audit Committee. The members who served 
on this Committee throughout the year to 31 July 2023 are noted on page 18. The Committee operates in accordance 
with written terms of reference approved by the Corporation. 

The Audit Committee meets at least once per term and provides a forum for reporting by the College’s internal, 
regularity and financial statement auditors, who have access to the Committee for independent discussion, without 
the presence of College Management. The Committee also receives and considers reports from the main FE 
funding bodies as they affect the College’s business. 

The College’s internal auditors review the system of internal control, risk management controls and governance 
processes in accordance with an agreed plan of input and report their findings to management and the Audit 
Committee. 

Management is responsible for the implementation of agreed audit recommendations and internal audit undertakes 
periodic follow up reviews to ensure such recommendations have been implemented.  

The Audit Committee also advises the Corporation on the appointment of internal, regularity and financial 
statement auditors and their remuneration for both audit and non-audit work as well as reporting annually to the 
Corporation. 

The Audit Committee met three times in the year to 31 July 2023. The members of the Committee and their 
attendance records are shown below:- 

Committee member Meetings attended 

Rubina Chaudary 3 
Sharon Birdi 3 
Mr David Jones 1 
Mr Shozzol Miah 3 
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Finance & Resources Committee (FRC)  
 
The College’s terms of reference indicate that the FRC should comprise six members of the Corporation including 
the Chair of the Corporation and the Chief Accounting Officer. The members who served on this Committee 
throughout the year to 31 July 2023 are noted on page 18. The Committee operates in accordance with written 
terms of reference approved by the Corporation. 
 

The FRC meets at least once per term whose primary role is to advise the Main Board on matters of Finance, The 
principal terms of reference include making recommendations to the Corporation on the following matters:- 

• Approval of Financial Statements; 
• Approval of College annual and revised budgets and any financial forecasts required by Funding Bodies; 
• Review of Management Accounts; 
• Approve major capital expenditure projects and any associated borrowings; 
• Receive progress reports on any major contracts; 
• Approve, where appropriate, College Accommodation strategy;  
• Determining College investment and borrowing policies; and 
• Monitor financial data for sub-contracting arrangements. 
•  

Corporation Performance 

The Governing Body has considered DfE guidance on Board reviews and has commissioned an external review in 
late 2023. The College has also included in 2023 plans for a full day off-site meeting to discuss important strategic 
and governance issues. 

Internal Control 
 
Scope of responsibility 
The Corporation is ultimately responsible for the College’s system of internal control and for reviewing its 
effectiveness. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve 
business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or 
loss. 

The Corporation has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Principal, as Chief Accounting Officer, for 
maintaining a sound system of internal control that supports the achievement of the College’s policies, aims and 
objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and assets for which he/she is personally responsible, in 
accordance with the responsibilities assigned to him in the Condition of Funding Agreement between Joseph 
Chamberlain Sixth Form College and the funding bodies. He is also responsible for reporting to the Corporation 
any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control. 

The purpose of the system of internal control 
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of 
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance 
of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise 
the risks to the achievement of College policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being 
realised and the impact should they be realised and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The 
system of internal control has been in place in Joseph Chamberlain Sixth Form College for the year ended 31 July 
2023 and up to the date of approval of the Financial Statements. 

 
Capacity to handle risk 
The Corporation has reviewed the key risks to which the College is exposed, together with the operating, financial 
and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Corporation is of the view that 
there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the College’s significant risks that has  
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Internal Control (continued) 
 

Capacity to handle risk (continued) 

been in place for the period ending 31 July 2023 and up to the date of approval of the Financial Statements. This 
process is regularly reviewed by the Corporation. 

 
The risk and control framework 
The system of internal control is based on a framework of regular management information, administrative 
procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. In particular, it 
includes: 

• comprehensive budgeting systems with an annual budget, which is reviewed and agreed by the 
Corporation 

• regular reviews by the Corporation of periodic and annual financial reports, which indicate financial 
performance against forecasts 

• setting targets to measure financial and other performance 
• clearly defined capital investment control guidelines 
• the adoption of formal project management disciplines, where appropriate. 

Joseph Chamberlain Sixth Form College has an internal audit service, which operates in accordance with the 
requirements of the ESFA Post 16 Audit Code of Practice. The work of the internal audit service is informed by  

the College’s analysis of the risks to which the College is exposed. The internal audit service provides the 
Corporation with reports on the agreed areas of College activity.  

The analysis of risk and the internal audit reports are endorsed by the Corporation on the recommendation of the 
Audit Committee. 

 
Review of effectiveness 
As Chief Accounting Officer, the Principal has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of 
internal control. The review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by: 

• the work of the internal auditors 
• the work of the executive managers within the College who have responsibility for the development and 

maintenance of the internal control framework 
• comments made by the College’s financial statements auditors and the reporting accountants for 

regularity assurance in their management letters and other reports. 
 
The Chief Accounting Officers in post during the year has been advised on the implications of the result of their 
review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control by the Audit Committee, which oversees the work of 
the internal auditor and other sources of assurance, and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous 
improvement of the system is in place. 
 
The Senior Leadership Team receives reports setting out key performance and risk indicators and considers 
possible issues brought to their attention by early warning mechanisms which are embedded within the departments 
and reinforced by risk awareness training. The Senior Leadership Team and the Audit Committee also receive 
regular reports from internal audit, which include recommendations for improvement. The Audit Committee’s role 
in this area is confined to a high-level review of the arrangements for internal control. The Corporation’s agenda 
includes a regular item for consideration of risk and control and receives reports thereon from the Senior 
Leadership Team and the Audit Committee. The emphasis is on obtaining the relevant degree of assurance and not 
merely reporting by exception. At its meeting on 19 December 2023, the Corporation received a report from the 
Audit Committee on the annual activities and assessments carried out in 2022/23. The Audit Committee report and 
assurance will be based on the documentation presented to them by the Senior Leadership Team and internal 
auditors and taking account of events since 31 July 2023. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE CORPORATION OF JOSEPH CHAMBLERAIN 
SIXTH FORM COLLEGE 
 
Opinion 
We have audited the financial statements of Joseph Chamberlain Sixth Form College (the “College”) and its 
subsidiary (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 July 2023 which comprise the consolidated and college statements 
of comprehensive income, the consolidated and college statement of changes in reserves, the balance sheets, the 
consolidated statement of cash flows and notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting 
policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is United Kingdom 
Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic 
of Ireland” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and the Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 
issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency. 
 
In our opinion the financial statements:  

• give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the College’s affairs as at 31 July 2023 and of 
the Group’s and the College’s surplus of income over expenditure for the year then ended;  

• have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice; and  

• have been prepared in accordance with the Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by the Education and 
Skills Funding Agency. 

 
Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable 
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit 
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group and College in accordance with 
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s 
Ethical Standard and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Conclusions relating to going concern 
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the governors’ use of the going concern basis of 
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. 
 
Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or 
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group’s or the College’s ability to 
continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised 
for issue. 
 
Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the governors with respect to going concern are described in the 
relevant sections of this report. 
 
Other information 
The other information comprises the information included in the Report and Financial Statements other than the 
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The governors are responsible for the other information 
contained within the Report and Financial Statements.  Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the 
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE CORPORATION OF JOSEPH CHAMBLERAIN 
SIXTH FORM COLLEGE (Continued) 
 
Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material 
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial 
statements themselves.  If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement 
of this other information, we are required to report that fact.  
 
We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
Matters on which we are required to report by exception 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Post-16 Audit Code of Practice 2021 to 
2022 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency requires us to report to you if, in our opinion: 

• adequate accounting records have not been kept;  
• the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records; or 
• we have not received all the information and explanations required for our audit.  

 

Responsibilities of the Corporation of Joseph Chamberlain Sixth Form College  
As explained more fully in the Statement of the Corporation’s Responsibilities set out on page 25, the Corporation 
is responsible for the preparation of financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, 
and for such internal control as the Corporation determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, the Corporation is responsible for assessing the Group’s and the College’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless the Corporation either intend to liquidate the Group or the College or to 
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
 
The extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud 
Irregularities are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. The objectives of our audit are to obtain 
sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding compliance with laws and regulations that have a direct effect on 
the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, to perform audit procedures to 
help identify instances of non-compliance with other laws and regulations that may have a material effect on the 
financial statements, and to respond appropriately to identified or suspected non-compliance with laws and 
regulations identified during the audit.   
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE CORPORATION OF JOSEPH CHAMBLERAIN 
SIXTH FORM COLLEGE (Continued) 
 
In relation to fraud, the objectives of our audit are to identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the 
financial statements due to fraud, to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the assessed risks of 
material misstatement due to fraud through designing and implementing appropriate responses and to respond 
appropriately to fraud or suspected fraud identified during the audit.   
 
However, it is the primary responsibility of management, with the oversight of those charged with governance, to 
ensure that the entity's operations are conducted in accordance with the provisions of laws and regulations and for 
the prevention and detection of fraud. 
 
In identifying and assessing risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including fraud, the group 
audit engagement team:  

• obtained an understanding of the nature of the sector, including the legal and regulatory frameworks that 
the Group and College operates in and how the Group and College are complying with the legal and 
regulatory frameworks; 

• inquired of management, and those charged with governance, about their own identification and 
assessment of the risks of irregularities, including any known actual, suspected or alleged instances of 
fraud; 

• discussed matters about non-compliance with laws and regulations and how fraud might occur including 
assessment of how and where the financial statements may be susceptible to fraud. 
 

As a result of these procedures we consider the most significant laws and regulations that have a direct impact on 
the financial statements are FRS 102, Further and Higher Education SORP, the College Accounts Direction 
published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency and tax compliance regulations.  We performed audit 
procedures to detect non-compliances which may have a material impact on the financial statements which 
included reviewing financial statement disclosures. 

 
The most significant laws and regulations that have an indirect impact on the financial statements are those which 
are in relation to the Education Inspection Framework under the Education and Inspections Act 2006, Keeping 
Children Safe in Education under the Education Act 2002 and the UK General Data Protection Regulation (UK 
GDPR) and the Data Protection Act 2018. We performed audit procedures to inquire of management and those 
charged with governance whether the Group is in compliance with these law and regulations and inspected 
correspondence and inspected correspondence with licensing or regulatory authorities. 
 
The group audit engagement team identified the risk of management override of controls as the area where the 
financial statements were most susceptible to material misstatement due to fraud.  Audit procedures performed 
included but were not limited to testing manual journal entries and other adjustments and evaluating the business 
rationale in relation to significant, unusual transactions and transactions entered into outside the normal course of 
business, challenging judgments and estimates. 
 
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial 
Reporting Council’s website at http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our 
auditor’s report. 
 
Use of our report 
This report is made solely to the Corporation, as a body, in accordance with the Funding Agreement published by 
the Education and Skills Funding Agency and our engagement letter dated 13 September 2022. Our audit work 
has been undertaken so that we might state to the Corporation, as a body, those matters we are engaged to state to 
them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or  
 
 

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities
http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE CORPORATION OF JOSEPH CHAMBLERAIN 
SIXTH FORM COLLEGE (Continued) 
 
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Corporation, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for 
the opinions we have formed. 
 
 
 
RSM UK AUDIT LLP  
Chartered Accountants 
10th Floor 
103 Colmore Row 
Birmingham 
West Midlands 
B3 3AG 
 
Date:  
 
  

RSM UK Audit LLP

20/12/23

https://rsm-uk.eu1.adobesign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAlkJblXMnj2TuJAP8aMs8hCAm1R90abcg
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Consolidated and College Statements of Comprehensive Income 

Notes

 Group College  Group College
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

INCOME
Funding body grants 2 17,596 17,596 16,520 16,520 
Tuition fees and education contracts 3 122 122 103 103 
Other grants and contracts 4 22 22 31 31 
Other income 5 563 563 551 551 
Investment income 6 317 317 65 65 

Total income 18,620 18,620 17,270 17,270 

EXPENDITURE
Staff costs 7 10,104 10,104 10,442 10,442 
Other operating expenses 8 5,251 5,247 4,376 4,357 
Depreciation 11 1,215 1,289 1,112 1,186 
Interest and other finance costs 9 94 94 148 148 

Total expenditure 16,664 16,734 16,078 16,133 

Surplus before other gains and losses 1,956 1,886 1,192 1,137 

Profit on disposal of assets 10 10 - - 

Surplus before tax 1,966 1,896 1,192 1,137 

Taxation 10 - - - - 

Surplus for the year 1,966 1,896 1,192 1,137 

Actuarial gain in respect of pension schemes 23 2,834 2,834 7,115 7,115 

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 4,800 4,730 8,307 8,252 

Represented by:

Unrestricted comprehensive income 4,800 4,730 8,307 8,252 

4,800 4,730 8,307 8,252 

Corporation of the College 4,800 4,730 8,307 8,252 

Corporation of the College 4,800 4,730 8,307 8,252 

Year ended 31 July 2023 Year ended 31 July 2022

Total comprehensive Income for the year attributable to:

Surplus for the year attributable to:
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Consolidated and College Statement of Changes in Reserves 

 Income and 
expenditure 

account 

Total 
 
 
 £’000 £’000 
Group   

Balance at 1 August 2021 16,300 

 

16,300 

    
Surplus from the income and expenditure 
account 

1,192 1,192 

Other comprehensive income 7,115 7,115 
 24,607 24,607 
Balance at 31 July 2022 24,607 24,607 
   
Remove former subsidiary company 

  
  

reserves 

Surplus from the income and expenditure 
 

12 

1,966 

12 

1,966 
account   
   
Other comprehensive income 2,834 2,834 
Total comprehensive income  4,800 4,800 

Balance at 31 July 2023 29,419 29,419 
   
College   

Balance at 1 August 2021 19,065 19,065 
   
Surplus from the income and expenditure 
account 

1,137 1,137 

Other comprehensive income 7,115 7,115 
 27,317 27,317 
Balance at 31 July 2022 27,317 27,317 
   
Surplus from the income and expenditure 
account 

1,896 1,896 

Other comprehensive income                2,834 2,834 
Total comprehensive income  4,730 4,730 

Balance at 31 July 2023 32,047 32,047 
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 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
 
 
    Notes 2023 2022 

     £'000 £'000 
Cash flow from operating activities    
       
Surplus for the year    1,966 1,192 

       
Adjustment for non-cash items     
Depreciation     1,215 1,112 
(Increase)/Decrease in debtors   (47) (22) 
Increase/(Decrease) in creditors due within one year 270 1,853 
Increase/(Decrease) in creditors due after one year  980 (439) 
Pensions costs less contributions payable  160 691 
Payments from Enhanced Pension provision  (4) (5) 

       
Adjustment for investing or financing activities   
Investment income    (317) (65) 
Interest payable    94 148 
Profit on sale of fixed assets              - - 

       
Net cash flow from operating activities  4,317 4,465 

       
Cash flow from investing activities     
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets            10 - 
Investment income    317 65 
Withdrawal of deposits    7,213 6,117 
New deposits    (9,061) (7,213) 
Payments made to acquire fixed assets  (7,234) (2,032) 

       
Net cash flow from investing activities  (8,755) (3,063) 

       
       
(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents in the year (4,438) 1,402 

       
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  6,873 5,471 

       
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  2,435 6,873 
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1. Statement of accounting policies and estimation techniques 
 
General Information 
Joseph Chamberlain Sixth Form College (“the College”) is a corporation established under the Further & 
Higher Education Act 1992 as an English sixth form college of further education. The registered office 
address of the Company is 1 Belgrave Road, Highgate, Birmingham, B12 9FF. The nature of the College’s 
operations is set out in the Members’ Report. 

Statement of accounting policies 
The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are 
considered material in relation to the financial statements. 

 
Basis of preparation 
These Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended 
Practice: Accounting for Further and Higher Education 2019 (the 2019 FE HE SORP), the College 
Accounts Direction for 2021/22 and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 – “The 
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland” (FRS102).  
 
The College is a public benefit entity and has therefore applied the relevant public benefit requirements 
of FRS 102. 
 

              The College has taken advantage of the exemptions provided in FRS 102- 1.12 and the 2015 FE HE   
              SORP 3.3, and has not included a separate statement of its own cash flows. These cash flows are  
              included within the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, and the College Balance Sheet discloses     
              cash at both the current and preceding reporting dates. 

 
The preparation of Financial Statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use of certain critical 
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise judgement in applying the College’s 
accounting policies. 
 

 Monetary amounts in these Financial Statements are rounded to the nearest £1,000 except where stated. 
 

              Basis of accounting 
The Financial Statements are prepared under the historical cost convention. 
 
Basis of consolidation 
The consolidated Financial Statements include the College and its subsidiary undertaking, Joseph 
Chamberlain Trading Limited. The College for International Citizenship CIC was disposed of on 1 August 
2022. 
 

 Control is achieved where the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an 
 entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Intra-group transactions, profits and balances are 
 eliminated fully on consolidation. All Financial Statements are made up to 31 July 2023. 
 

Going Concern 
The activities of the College, together with the factors likely to affect its future development and 
performance are set out in the Members’ Report. The financial position of the College, its cash flow, and 
liquidity are presented in the Financial Statements and accompanying Notes. 

 
The College does not have any bank borrowings as the previous loan was fully repaid in December 2019. 
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1. Statement of accounting policies and estimation techniques (continued) 

Going Concern (continued) 
 

Cash flow up to 31 July 2024 remains positive and the College has significant cash reserves at its disposal 
to overcome the ongoing uncertainty over inflationary pressures. 

               
              Accordingly, the College has a reasonable expectation that it has adequate resources to continue in    
              operational existence for the foreseeable future, and for this reason will continue to adopt the going  
              concern basis in the preparation of its Financial Statements. 
 

Recognition of income 
Government revenue grants and other grants and are accounted for under the accrual model as permitted 
by FRS 102 and are recognised where a reliable estimate of the fair value of the asset received or 
receivable can be made on a systematic basis over the periods in which the related costs for which the 
grant compensates are recognised. Funding body recurrent grants are measured in line with best estimates 
for the period of what is receivable and depend on the particular income stream involved. Any under 
achievement for the Adult Education Budget is adjusted for and reflected in the level of recurrent grant 
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The final grant income is normally determined 
with the conclusion of the year end reconciliation process with the funding body following the year end, 
and the results of any funding audits. 16-18 learner-responsive funding is not normally subject to 
reconciliation and is therefore not subject to contract adjustments, and is recognised when receivable. 
 
Grants from non-government sources are recognised in income when the College is entitled to the income 
and performance related conditions have been met. Income received in advance of performance related 
conditions being met is recognised as deferred income within creditors on the Balance Sheet and released 
to income as the conditions are met. 
 
Government capital grants are capitalised, held as deferred income and recognised in income over the 
expected useful life of the asset, under the accrual method as permitted by FRS 102. Other capital grants 
are recognised in income when the College is entitled to the funds subject to any performance related 
conditions being met. 

 
Income from tuition fees is stated gross of any expenditure which is not a discount and is recognised in 
the period for which it is earned. 
 
All income from short-term deposits is credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period 
in which it is earned on a receivable basis. 
 
All other income is included in the year in which it is earned. 
 

              Accounting for post-employment benefits  
              Post-employment benefits to employees of the College are principally provided by the Teachers’   
              Pension Scheme (TPS) and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). These are multi-employer  
              defined benefit plans, which are externally funded and contracted out of the State Second Pension 
 

Teachers’ Pension Scheme (TPS) 
The TPS is an unfunded scheme. Contributions to the TPS are calculated so as to spread the cost of 
pensions over employees’ working lives with the College in such a way that the pension cost is a 
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined 
by qualified actuaries on the basis of valuations using a prospective benefit method. The TPS is a multi-
employer scheme and the College is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of  
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1   Statement of accounting policies and estimation techniques (continued) 

            Accounting for post-employment benefits (continued)  
            the scheme on a consistent and reasonable basis. The TPS is therefore treated as a defined contribution      
               plan and the contributions recognised as an expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the  
               periods during which services are rendered by employees. Differences between contributions payable in  
               the year and contributions paid are shown as either accruals or prepayments. 
               
              West Midlands Pension Fund (LGPS) 

The LGPS is a funded scheme and the assets of the Scheme are held separately. The assets of the LGPS 
are measured using closing fair values. LGPS liabilities are measured using the projected unit credit 
method and discounted at the current rate of return on a high-quality corporate bond of equivalent term 
and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at 
each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and the 
costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of 
staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income and included within finance costs. This comprises the interest cost 
on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the 
fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit 
obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the 
scheme assets is recognised in other comprehensive income. 

 
Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses and the return on scheme assets (excluding    
amounts included in net interest) are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income. 

 
Short term Employment benefits 
Short term employment benefits such as salaries and compensated absences (holiday pay) are recognised 
as an expense in the year in which the employees render service to the College. Any unused benefits are 
accrued and measured as the additional amount the College expects to pay as a result of the unused 
entitlement. 

 
Enhanced pensions 
The actual cost of any enhanced on-going pensions to former members of staff are paid by the College 
annually. An estimate of the expected future cost of any enhancement to the on-going pension of former 
members of staff were charged in full to comprehensive income in the year that the member of staff retired. 
In subsequent years, a charge is made to provisions in the Balance Sheet using the enhanced pension 
spread-sheet provided by the Association of Colleges. 

 
Non-current Assets - Tangible fixed assets 
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.  
 
Land and buildings 
Freehold buildings are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their expected useful lives as follows: 
 

• Main College Campus – 50 years 
 

Freehold land is not depreciated.  
 
The College has a policy of depreciating major adaptations to buildings over the period of their useful 
economic life of between 20 and 50 years. However if the original asset cannot be identified then the 
College can write-off small scale refurbishments as Revenue expenditure. 
 
Where land and buildings are acquired with the aid of specific Government grants, they are capitalised 
and depreciated as above. The related grants are credited to a deferred income account within creditors, 
and are released to the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the expected useful economic life of the  
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1. Statement of accounting policies and estimation techniques (continued) 
 

Non-current Assets - Tangible fixed assets (continued) 
 
related asset on a systematic basis consistent with the depreciation policy. The deferred income is 
allocated between creditors due within one year and those due after more than one year.  
 
A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that 
the carrying amount of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. 

 
Assets under Construction 

              Assets under construction are accounted for at cost and they are not depreciated until they are brought    
              into use.         
                       

Subsequent expenditure on existing fixed assets 
Where significant expenditure is incurred on tangible fixed assets after initial purchase it is charged to the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income account in the period it is incurred, unless it increases the future 
benefits to the College, in which case it is capitalised and depreciated on the relevant basis. 
 
Equipment 
Equipment costing less than £1,000 per individual item is recognised as expenditure in the period of 
acquisition, unless the individual item is part of a major replacement programme, in which case such 
items may be capitalised. All other equipment is capitalised at cost.  
  
Capitalised equipment is depreciated on a straight-line basis over its remaining useful economic life as 
follows: 
 

• plant and equipment    5-15 years  
• motor vehicles    5 years  
• computer equipment        3-5 years  
• furniture, fixtures and fittings   5-10 years 

 
Where equipment is acquired with the aid of specific Government grants, they are capitalised and 
depreciated as above. The related grants are credited to a deferred income account within creditors, and 
are released to the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the expected useful economic life of the 
related asset on a systematic basis consistent with the depreciation policy. The deferred income is 
allocated between creditors due within one year and those due after more than one year. 

 
 Leased assets 

Costs in respect of operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term.  
 
Leasing agreements which transfer to the College substantially all the benefits and risks of ownership of 
an asset are treated as finance leases. As at 31 July 2023 the College did not have any finance lease 
agreements. 

 
Investments 
Investments in subsidiaries 
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment in the individual Financial 
Statements. 
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1. Statement of accounting policies and estimation techniques (continued) 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash includes cash in hand, deposits repayable on demand and overdrafts. Deposits are repayable on demand 
if they are in practice available within 24 hours without penalty. 
 
Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of 
cash with insignificant risk of change in value.  
 
Financial instruments 
The Group has chosen to adopt Sections 11 and 12 of FRS102 in full in respect of financial instruments. 
 
Financial assets and liabilities 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities and equity are classified according to the substance of 
the financial instrument’s contractual obligations, rather than the financial instrument’s legal form. All 
financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at transaction price (including transaction costs), 
except for those financial assets measured at fair value through the profit or loss, which are initially 
measured at fair value (which is normally the transaction price excluding transaction costs), unless 
arrangement constitutes a financing transaction. A financial asset or financial liability that is payable or 
receivable in one year is measured at the undiscounted amount expected to be received or paid net of 
impairment, unless it is a financing transaction. If an arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, the 
financial asset or financial liability is measured at the present value of the future payments discounted at 
a market rate of interest for a similar debt instrument. 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset only when there is a current legally enforceable right to 
set off the recognised amounts and the intention to either settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and 
settle the liability simultaneously.  
 
Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities 
A financial asset is derecognised only when the contractual rights to cash-flows expire or are settled, or 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to another party, or if some significant 
risk and rewards of ownership are retained but control of the asset has transferred to another party that is 
able to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party. A financial liability (or part thereof) is 
derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.  

 
Foreign currency translation 
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded using the rate of exchange ruling at the date 
of the transaction.  

   
Taxation 
The College is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 Finance Act 2010 and 
therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK Corporation Tax purposes. Accordingly, 
the College is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within 
categories covered by sections 478-488 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation 
of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable 
purposes.  
 
The College is partially exempt in respect of Value Added Tax, so that it can only recover a minor element 
of the VAT charged on its inputs.  Irrecoverable VAT on inputs is included in the costs of such inputs 
and added to the cost of tangible fixed assets as appropriate, where the inputs themselves are tangible 
fixed assets by nature.  
 
The College’s subsidiary companies are subject to Corporation Tax and VAT in the same way as any 
commercial organisation. 
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1. Statement of accounting policies and estimation techniques (continued). 

Provisions and contingent liabilities 
Provisions are recognised when the College has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past 
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
 

              Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount expected to be required to settle the    
               obligation is recognised at present value using a pre-tax discount rate. The unwinding of the discount is    
               recognised as a finance cost in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period it arises. 

 
A contingent liability arises from a past event that gives the College a possible obligation whose existence 
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the 
control of the College. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise 
be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the 
obligation cannot be measured reliably. 
 
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but are disclosed in the notes to the Financial 
Statements. 
 
Agency arrangements 
The College acts as an agent in the collection and payment of bursary support funds from the funding 
bodies. Related payments received from the funding bodies and subsequent disbursements to students are 
excluded from the Statement of Comprehensive Income of the College where the College does not have 
control of the economic benefit related to the transaction. 
 
Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty 
In preparing these financial statements, management have made the following judgements: 

•                Impairment of tangible fixed assets 
Determine whether there are indicators of impairment of the group’s tangible assets. Factors 
taken into consideration in reaching such a decision include the economic viability and expected 
future financial performance of the asset and where it is a component of a larger cash-generating 
unit, the viability and expected future performance of that unit. 
 

• Useful economic lives of tangible fixed assets 
Tangible fixed assets are depreciated over their useful lives taking into account residual values, 
where appropriate. Where those assets are acquired either in whole or in part with Capital Grants 
then the Deferred Capital Grant release matches the same criteria as that for Depreciation. The 
actual lives of the assets and residual values are assessed annually and may vary depending on a 
number of factors. In re-assessing asset lives, factors such as technological innovation and 
maintenance programmes are taken into account. Residual value assessments consider issues 
such as future market conditions, the remaining life of the asset and projected disposal values. 
 

• Local Government Pension Scheme 
The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on 
a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The 
assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. 
Any changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 24, will impact the carrying 
amount of the pension liability. The actuary has used a roll forward approach which projects 
results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the 
actuary in valuing the pensions asset at 31 July 2023. Any differences between the figures 
derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the 
carrying amount of the pension access/liability. 
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2023 2023 2022 2022
Group College Group College
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

   22 22 20 20 
   - - 11 11 

22 22 31 31 

Other grants and contracts     
Coronavirus Job Retemtion Scheme     

Total     

 
 

2. Funding body grants 
2023 2023 2022 2022

Group College Group College
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Recurrent grants
West Mids Combined Auth -Adults 2,155 2,155 1,945 1,945 
Education and Skills Funding Agency-16-18 14,127 14,127 13,564 13,564 
Specific grants
ESFA/WMCA Agency 50 50 49 49 
ESFA Miscellaneous small grants 19 19 19 19 
ESFA Devolved Maintenance grants 122 122 - - 
ESFA Teachers Pension grant 413 413 325 325 
ESFA Tuition Fund grant 311 311 219 219 
Releases of government capital grants 399 399 399 399

Total 17,596 17,596 16,520 16,520 
 

 
 

3.  Tuition fees and education contracts 

       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4. Other grants and contracts 

 
  
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

Other Grants and contracts 
The Corporation furloughed members of staff under the Government Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme who were 
engaged in running the Sports Centre in the evenings and at weekends as the facility was closed under UK Health 
Security Agency & Office for Health Improvement & Disparities (ex Public Health England) protocols. The 
funding received of £Nil (2021/22-£10,775) was in respect of seven members of staff whose staff costs are included 
in note 7 below. The scheme closed on 30 September 2021. 

 

2023 2023 2022 2022
Group College Group College
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

 122 122 103 103 

122 122 103 103 

Education Contracts     

Total     
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5.  Other income 

2023 2023 2022 2022
Group College Group College
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Other income generating activities 34 34 30 30 
Non-funding body capital grants 62 62 62 62 
Miscellaneous income 467 467 459 459 

Total 563 563 551 551 

  
6. Investment Income 

 
2023 2023 2022 2022

Group College Group College
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Income from bank deposits 312 312 53 53 
Income from investments 24 24 24 24 
Total 336 336 77 77 

Fair Value gain on investments (19) (19) (12) (12)

Total (19) (19) (12) (12)

 

7. Staff costs and key management personnel remuneration – Group and College 
The average number of persons (including key management personnel) employed by the Group during 
the year, expressed as full-time equivalents, was: 

 
 

            Staff costs for the above persons:     
   2023  2022 

   £'000  £'000 
           Wages and salaries   6,983  6,955 
           Social security costs   709  703 
           Other pension costs   1,529  2,023 
           Payroll sub-total   9,221  9,681 
           Contracted out staffing services   883  761 

   10,104  10,442 

      
 

 Other pension costs include FRS102 adjustments of £160,000 (2021/22: £691,000). 

2023 2022
Number Number

 127 132
 91 94

 218 226

Teaching staff
Non-teaching staff
Total 
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7.    Staff costs and key management personnel remuneration – Group and College (continued) 

              Key management personnel 
 

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing 
and controlling the activities of the College and are represented by the College Leadership Team, which 
at the 31 July 2023 comprised the Principal, Deputy Principal, Executive Directors of Finance and HR, 
Director of Adult Education (part time), and Assistant Principals (2). 
 
Emoluments of key management personnel, Accounting Officer and other higher paid staff 

2023 2022
Number Number

The number of key management personnel including 
the Accounting Officer was: 7 7 

 
The number of key management personnel and other staff who received annual emoluments, excluding 
pension contributions and including benefits in kind, in the following ranges was: 

 

Two key management personnel are employed on a part time basis and included in the above bandings. 
If theses staff members were employed on a full time basis then they would be re-classified into bandings 
£55,001 to £60,000. 
 
There were two other members of staff who received salaries in the £60,001-£65,000 banding (2021/222: 
None). These two staff members are included in the 2023 numbers but excluded from 2022 as their 
earnings were below £60,000. 
 
 
 

2023 2022
Number Number

£25,001 to £30,000 - 1
£45,001 to £50,000 - 2
£50,001 to £55,000 2 -
£55,001 to £60,000 2 1
£60,001 to £65,000 2 1
£65,001 to £70,000 1 -
£70,001 to £75,000 - 1
£75,001 to £80,000 1 -
£125,001 to £130,000 - 1
£130,001 to £135,000 1 -

9 7 

Key management personnel
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7. Staff costs and key management personnel remuneration – Group and College (continued) 

Key management personnel (including the Accounting 
Officer) emoluments are made up as follows:

2023 2022
£'000 £'000

Salaries 506 448
National Insurance contributions 62 55
Pension  contributions 115 95

Total emoluments 683 598

            
There were no amounts due to key management personnel that were waived in the year, nor any salary 
sacrifice arrangements in place.  
 
The above emoluments include amounts payable to the Accounting Officer (who is also the highest paid 
senior post-holder) of: 
 

2023 2022
£'000 £'000

Salary 136 129
Pension contributions 32 31

168 160

 
The remuneration of the Principal/Accounting Officer for the year to 31 July 2023 was set on the 
recommendation of the College’s Remuneration Committee. The Principal/Accounting Officer was not 
involved in setting their remuneration. The factors taken into account by this Committee in determining 
the Accounting Officer’s remuneration were benchmarking against other colleges, meeting of key 
performance targets and a full appraisal. 
  
The relationship between the Accounting Officer’s emoluments, expressed as a multiple of all other 
employees based on full-time equivalents, is set out below for basic salary as there are no benefits in kind. 
 
                                                                                                                          2023             2022 
                                                                                                                             No                 No 
Basic salary as a multiple of median basic salary of staff                                   3.9                 3.8   
 

              The calculation includes the costs of contracted out staff as those staff are included in the staff number     
              table above.  
               

Governors Remuneration 
 
The Accounting Officer and the staff members only receive remuneration in respect of services they 
provide undertaking their roles of Principal and staff members under contracts of employment and not in 
respect of their roles as Governors. The other members of the Corporation did not receive any payments 
from the College in respect of their roles as Governors. 
 



44 
Joseph Chamberlain Sixth Form College 
 
Financial Statements for the Year ended 31 July 2023 
 
Notes to the Accounts (continued) 
 

 
 

7. Governors Remuneration (continued) 
 
No Governors received reimbursement of expenses incurred in attending external Governance events 
during 2022/23 and 2021/22.  
 

8. Other operating expenses 
 

2023 2023 2022 2022
Group College Group College
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Teaching costs 793 793 718 718 
Non-teaching costs 2,669 2,665 2,314 2,295 
Premises costs 1,789 1,789 1,344 1,344 

Total 5,251 5,247 4,376 4,357 

Surplus before tax is stated after 
charging: 2023 2022

£'000 £'000
Auditors' remuneration:

 Financial statements audit* 45 37 
 Internal audit 19 14 
Other services provided by the 
financial statements auditor
Taxation incl. VAT services 6 6 

Surplus on disposal of non-current assets - - 
Hire of assets under operating leases 60 67 

* includes £47,300 in respect of College (2021/22 £35,976)

 
The internal auditors also performed the audit of sub-contracting in line with the funding body guidelines. 

 
9.  Interest and other finance costs – Group and College 
 
 

 

 
10. Taxation 

 
The Corporation do not believe the College nor any subsidiary companies was liable for any Corporation 
Tax arising out of its activities during this year.  

2023 2022
£'000 £'000

On bank loans, overdrafts and other loans - -

- -
Unwinding of discounts in relation to enhanced pension 
provision 1 1
Net interest on defined benefit pension liability (note 23) 93 147

94 148
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11. Tangible fixed assets (Group) 
 

Land and 
Buildings 
Freehold

Buildings 
under 

Construction Equipment Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000

Cost
At 1 August 2022 37,958 2,086 6,116 46,160 
Additions 2,744 3,641 849 7,234 
Transfer 393 (393) - - 
Disposals - - (56) (56)
At 31 July 2023 41,095 5,334 6,909 53,338 
Depreciation
At 1 August 2022 9,123 - 4,665 13,788 
Charge for the year 716  - 499 1,215 
Disposals - - (56) (56)
At 31 July 2023 9,839 - 5,108 14,947 

Net book value at 31 July 2023 31,256 5,334 1,801 38,391 

Net book value at 31 July 2022 28,835 2,086 1,451 32,372 

 
Tangible fixed assets (College only) 
 

Land and 
Buildings 
Freehold

Buildings 
under 

Construction Equipment Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

Cost
At 1 August 2022 41,649 2,086 6,116 49,851 
Additions 2,744 3,641 849 7,234 
Transfers 393 (393) - - 
Disposals - - (56) (56)
At 31 July 2023 44,786 5,334 6,909 57,029 
Depreciation
At 1 August 2022 10,156 4,665 14,821 
Charge for the year 790 - 499 1,289 
Disposals  - (56) (56)
At 31 July 2023 10,946 - 5,108 16,054 

Net book value at 31 July 2023 33,840 5,334 1,801 40,975 

Net book value at 31 July 2022 31,494 2,086 1,450 35,030 

 
 

All the tangible fixed assets of the group are held in the books of the College.  
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12.  Non-current Investments 
 

2023 2022
£000 £000

Investment in subsidiary companies at cost less 
amounts written off                      -                       -

 
 
The College owns 100 per cent of the issued ordinary £1 shares of Joseph Chamberlain (Trading) Limited 
a company incorporated in England and Wales. Joseph Chamberlain (Trading) Limited temporarily 
ceased trading in March 2020 due to Covid and College building works and had not re-opened at the 
Balance Sheet date. In the year to 31 July 2023 this subsidiary incurred an operating deficit of £3,728 
(2022: £7,032 deficit). No gift aid has been made to Joseph Chamberlain College in the year (2022 £nil). 
Joseph Chamberlain (Trading) Limited owned 100 per cent of the issued ordinary £1 shares of The 
College for International Citizenship CIC a Community Interest Company. However this shareholding 
was sold on 1 August 2022 for £1. The College for International Citizenship generated an after tax deficit 
of £11,964 in the year to 31 July 2022. 
 

13. Debtors 
 

Group College Group College
2023 2023 2022 2022

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Amounts falling due within one year
Trade receivables 4 4 41 41 

Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - 41 - 38 
Prepayments and accrued income 274 274 189 189 

Total 278 319 230 268 

 
14. Current investments 

 

  

Group College Group College
2023 2023 2022 2022

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Short term bank deposits 8,231 8,231 6,363 6,363 
Charity Investment Fund 830 830 850 850 

Total 9,061 9,061 7,213 7,213 
 

 
Deposits are held with banks and building societies operating in the London market and licensed by the 
Financial Conduct Authority with more than three months’ maturity at the Balance Sheet date. The charity 
fund investment relates to the purchase of units through CCLA in a Charity Investment Fund and a Charity 
Ethical Investment Fund. The units can be sold at any time. Interest received is processed through the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income.  
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15. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 
 

Group College Group College
2023 2023 2022 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000

Holiday pay accrual 18            18            24            24            
Trade payables 456          456          435          435          
Other taxation and social security 175          175          349          349          
Accruals and other deferred income 3,352       3,348       2,817       2,802       
Deferred income-government capital 
grants 420          420          439          439          
Amounts owed to Education and Skills 
Funding Agency 50            50            137          137          

4,471       4,467       4,201       4,186       

  
 

16. Creditors: amounts falling due after one year 
 

Group College Group College
2023 2023 2022 2022

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Deferred income - government capital 
grants 16,245 16,245 15,265 15,265

Total 16,245 16,245 15,265 15,265

 
 
 
 

17. Provisions 
                                 

Defined 
benefit 

obligations
Enhanced 

Pensions Total
£'000 £'000 £'000

At 1 August 2022 2,573 42 2,615 
Expenditure in the period - (4) (4)
Adjustments in the period (2,573) (8) (2,581)

At 31 July 2023 - 30 30 

                                   Group and College

 
 

               Defined benefit obligations relate to the assets/liabilities under the College’s membership of the Local        
               Government Pension Scheme. Further details are given in Note 23. 

  
The enhanced pension provision relates to the cost of staff who have already left the College’s employ 
and commitments for reorganisation costs from which the College cannot reasonably withdraw at the 
Balance Sheet date. This provision has been recalculated in accordance with guidance issued by the 
Association of Colleges. 
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   17.   Provisions (continued) 
 
 The principal assumptions for this calculation are: 

2023 2022
Price inflation 2.80% 2.90%
Discount rate 5.00% 3.30%

 
 The enhanced pension provision includes £19,643 (2022: £21,328) in respect of a former senior post- 
holder.   
 
 
 

18. Cash and cash equivalents 
 
 
 At 1 

August 
2022 

 Cash 
flows  

  Other 
changes  

 At 31 
July 
2023 

 £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000 

 Cash and cash equivalents 6,873 

 

 (4,438)  -  2,435 
Overdrafts -  -  -  - 
        
Total 6,873  (4,438)  -  2,435 

 

 
 

19. Capital and other commitments 

2023 2022
£'000 £'000

Commitments contracted for at 31 July 0 5,855

Group and College
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20. Lease obligations 
 
The total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:-

2023 2022
£'000 £'000

Land & Buildings:
Not later than one year 12 12
Later than one year and not later than five years - 12
Later than five years - -

12 24

Other:
Not later than one year 46 28 
Later than one year and not later than five years 88 2 
Later than five years - - 

134 30 

Group and College

 
21. Contingent liabilities 

The College is unaware of any contingent liabilities that may be accruing at the date of approval of 
these accounts by the Corporation. 

 
22. Events after the reporting period 

It should be noted that the College has just awarded a contract for the completion of the new Business 
Centre building following the insolvency of the previous main contractors. The value of the contract is 
£1,189,000.  

 
23. Defined benefit obligations 

The College's employees belong to two principal post-employment benefit plans, the Teachers' Pensions 
Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension 
Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is administered by the West Midlands Pension Fund.  Both 
are multi-employer defined-benefit plans.   
Total pension cost for the year £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Teachers' Pension Scheme: contributions paid 1,090 1,050
Local Government Pension Scheme:

Contributions paid 279 294
FRS 102 (28) charge 160 691

439 985

Enhanced pension charge to Statement of 
Comprehensive Income - -
Total Pension Cost for year within staff costs 1,529 2,035

Charge to Statement of Comprehensive Income
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23.   Defined Benefit obligations (continued) 
 
              The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries, the latest     
              actuarial valuation of the TPS was 31 March 2019 and of the LGPS 31 March 2022. 

 
              The above figures exclude payments to the LGPS provider in respect of Deficit Recovery Payments of     
              £nil (2021/22-£15,000) and a difference of £8,000 between the actual employer contributions paid of  
              £279,000 and the calculation provided by WMPF of £271,000 which is based on July 2022 to May 2023  
              plus an estimate for June and July 2023.  

 
Contributions amounting to £31,307 (2022: £55,039) and £127,370 (2022: £244,145) were payable to the 
LGPS and TPS schemes respectively at 31 July 2023 and are included within creditors. 

 
Teachers’ Pension Scheme 
The Teachers' Pensions Scheme (“TPS”) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed 
by the Teachers' Pensions Regulations 2014.  
  
The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a “pay as you go” basis – these contributions, 
along with those made by employers, are credited to the Exchequer. The TPS is a multi-employer pension 
plan and there is insufficient information to account for the scheme on as a defined benefit plan.so it is 
accounted for as a defined contribution plan.  
 
Not less than every four years the Government Actuary (GA), using normal actuarial principles, conducts 
a formal actuarial review of the TPS. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. 
Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of 
benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation was carried out as at 31 March 2020 and 
in accordance with The Public Service Pensions (Valuation and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2023 and 
the Employer Contribution Rate was assessed using agreed assumptions in line with the Directions and 
was accepted at the original assessed rate as there was no cost control mechanism breach.  
 
Valuation of the Teachers Pension Scheme 
The latest valuation report was published on 26 October 2023. The key results of the valuation are:- 

• Total scheme liabilities for service (the capital sum needed at 31 March 2020 to meet the stream 
of future cashflows in respect of benefits earned) of £262 million. 

• Value of notional assets (estimated future contributions  
together with the proceeds from the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £222 
billion. 

• Notional past service deficit of £39.8 billion (2016-£22 billion). 
• Discount rate is 1.7% in excess of CPI (2016-2.4% in excess of CPI). This change has the greatest 

financial significance. 

               As a result of the valuation, new employer contribution rates have been set at 28.6% of pensionable pay    
               from 1 April 2024 until 31 March 2027 (compared to 23.68% under the previous valuation including a  
               0.8% administration levy). DfE agreed to pay a Teachers Pensions employer contribution grant to cover  
               the additional costs during the 2021/22 academic year, and currently through to July 2024. The pension  
               costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £1,090,000 (2022: £1,050,000). 
 

FRS102 (28) 
Under the definitions set out in FRS 102 (28.11), the TPS is a multi-employer pension plan. The College 
is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the plan. 

               
              Accordingly, the College has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has accounted for its     
              contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined-contribution plan. The College has set out above the  
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23.   Defined benefit obligations (continued) 
                      
              FRS 102 (28) continued  
 
              information available on the plan and the implications for the College in terms of the anticipated  
              contribution rates. 
 

Local Government Pension Scheme 
 
The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit scheme, with the assets held in separate funds administered by 
West Midlands Pension Fund. The total contributions made for the year ended 31 July 2023 was £369,000 
of which employer’s contributions totalled £279,000 and employees’ contributions totalled £90,000. The 
contributions from 1 April 2023 are 21.3% for the College and between 5.5% and 12.5% for employees, 
depending on salary according to a national scale.  
 
As a result of the High Court’s recent Lloyds ruling on the equalisation of Guaranteed Minimum Pension 
(GMP) between genders, a number of pension schemes have made adjustments to accounting disclosures 
to reflect the effect this ruling has on the value of pension liabilities. It is the opinion of the scheme actuary 
that HM Treasury have confirmed that the judgement “does not impact on the current method used to 
achieve equalisation and indexation in public service pension schemes”.  
 
On 22 January 2018, the Government published the outcome to its indexation and equalisation of GMP 
in public service pension schemes consultation concluding that the requirement for public service pension 
schemes to fully protect the GMP element of individuals’ public service pension would be extended to 
those individuals reaching State Pension Age (SPA) before 6 April 2021. HM Treasury published a 
Ministerial Direction on 4 December 2018 to implement this outcome, with effect from 2 April 2016. 
 
The actuaries valuation assumption for GMP is that the Fund will pay limited increases for members that 
have reached SPA by 6 April 2016, with the Government providing the remainder of the inflationary 
increase. For members that reach SPA after this date, the actuaries have assumed that the Fund will be 
required to pay the entire inflationary increase. Therefore, the actuaries do not believe they need to make 
any adjustments to the value placed on liabilities as a result of the above outcome. 
  

 
              Principal Actuarial Assumptions 

The following information is based upon a full actuarial valuation of the fund at 31 March 2022 updated 
to 31 July 2023 by Hymans Robertson LLP- qualified independent actuaries.  
                  At 31 July      At 31 July 

2023  2022 

Rate of increase in salaries      4.00%  3.70% 
Future pension increases      3.00%  2.70% 
Discount rate for scheme liabilities     5.05%  3.50% 
Inflation assumptions (CPI)     3.00%  2.70% 
Commutation of pensions to lump sums    50%  50% 

               
             The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates 
             rates. The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 (based on updated mortality information post  
             pandemic) are: 
             At 31 July      At 31 July 

        2023  2022 
Retiring today              
Males        19.8  21.2 
Females        24.1  23.6 
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23.   Defined benefit obligations (continued) 
 
Local Government Pension Scheme (continued) 
 
 
 
Retiring in 20 years 
Males        21.4  22.9 
Females        24.9                      25.4 

 
 

              The College’s share of the assets in the plan at the balance sheet date was: 
 

Fair Value 
at 31 July 

2023

Fair Value 
at 31 July 

2022
£'000 £'000

Equity instrumemts 7,068 6,593 
Debt instrumemts 2,183 2,333 
Property 727 811 
Cash 416 406 

Total fair value of plan assets 10,394 10,143 

Actual return on plan assets (387) 67 
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23.     Defined benefit obligations (continued) 
 

 Local Government Pension Scheme (continued) 
 
Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in respect of the plan are: 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Movement in net defined benefit (liability) / asset during year 

2023 2022
£'000 £'000

Net defined benefit (liability) / asset in scheme at 1st August (2,573) (8,842)
Movement in year:

Current service cost (431) (985)
Employer contributions 271 294 
Administrative expenses - - 
Net interest on the defined (liability) / asset (93) (147)
Actuarial (loss)/gain 3,929 7,107 

Net defined benefit asset/(liability) at 31st July 1,103 (2,573)
 

  
 
 

However, the pension asset of £1,103,000 has been reduced to £nil in these Financial Statements together 
with an adjustment to the amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. 

 
Amounts included in staff costs  
Current service cost 
Admin expenses 
 
Total 
 
 
Amounts included in interest and other 
finance costs 
Net interest expense 
 
Amount recognised in other comprehensive 
income 
Return on pension plan assets 
Changes in assumptions underlying the present 
value of  
plan obligations 
 
Amount recognised in other comprehensive 
income 
 

2023 
£’000 

 
(429) 

(2) 
 

(431) 
 
 

(93) 
 
 

(246) 
 

4,175 
 
 

3,929 
 
 

2022 
£’000 

 
(977) 

(8) 
 

(985) 
 
 

(147) 
 
 

67 
 

7,040 
 
 

7,107 
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23.   Defined benefit obligations (continued) 
 
Local Government Pension Scheme (continued) 
 

             Asset and Liability Reconciliation 
 

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations 
 
Defined benefit obligations at start of period 
Current service cost 
Interest cost 
Contributions by scheme participants 
Change in financial assumptions 
Benefits paid 
 
Defined benefit obligations at end of period 
 
Changes in fair value of plans assets 
 
Fair value of plan assets at start of period 
Interest on plan assets 
Return on plan assets  
Employer contributions 
Changes in financial assumptions 
Administrative expenses 
Contributions by scheme participants 
Benefits paid 
 
Fair value of plan assets at end of period 
 

2023 
£’000 

12,716 
431 
450 
90 

(4,175) 
(221) 

 
9,291 

 
 

10,143 
357 

(246) 
273 

- 
(2) 
90 

(221) 
 

10,394 
 
 

2022 
£’000 

18,596 
985 
304 

 96 
(7,040) 

(225) 
 

12,716 
 

 
9,754 

157 
67 

302 
- 

(8) 
96 

(225) 
 

10,143 
 

24. Related Party Transactions 
Owing to the nature of the College's operations and the composition of the board of governors being 
drawn from local public and private sector organisations, it is inevitable that transactions will take place 
with organisations in which a member of the board of governors may have an interest. All transactions 
involving such organisations are in accordance with the College's Financial Regulations and normal 
procurement procedures. There were five small charges amounting to £5,443 in respect of transactions 
between the three organisations. At the year-end Joseph Chamberlain Trading limited and the College for 
International Citizenship CIC had outstanding balances of £41,497 and £nil due to the College. 

 
No Governors apart from staff Governors, received any payment whilst performing their duties for the 
College (2022: None). 
 
Key management compensation is given in note 7. 
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25. Learner support funds 

2023 2022
£'000 £'000

Amount overspent at 1 August 2022 (3) (3)
Funding body grants - discretionary/vulnerable learner 
support 1,023 1,011 

1,020 1,008 
Disbursed to students (921) (972)
Administration costs (49) (48)

Balance underspent/(overspent) as at 31 July 50 (12)

 
 

 
 

Funding body grants are available solely for students. In the majority of instances, the College only acts as a paying 
agent. In these circumstances, the grants and related disbursements are therefore excluded from the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income. The grants received are from both the ESFA and the WMCA. The College spent more 
than its allocation and the above overspend has been carried forward in the College Balance Sheet. 
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Conclusion 
We have carried out an engagement, in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 13 September 
2022 and further to the requirements of the grant funding agreements and contracts with the Education and Skills 
Funding Agency (the “ESFA”) or those of any other public funder, to obtain limited assurance about whether the 
expenditure disbursed and income received by Joseph Chamberlain Sixth Form College during the period 1 August 
2022 to 31 July 2023 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions 
conform to the authorities which govern them. 
 
In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the 
expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 August 2022 to 31 July 2023 have not been applied 
to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern 
them. 
 
Basis for conclusion 
The framework that has been applied is set out in the Post-16 Audit Code of Practice (the Code) issued by the 
ESFA and in any relevant conditions of funding concerning adult education notified by a relevant funder.  
 
We have complied with the independence and other ethical requirements of the FRC’s Ethical Standard and the 
ethical pronouncements of the ICAEW. We also apply International Standard on Quality Management (UK) 1 
Quality Management for Firms that Perform Audits or Reviews of Financial Statements, or Other Assurance or 
Related Services Engagements and accordingly maintain comprehensive systems of continuing quality 
management. 
 
Responsibilities of Corporation of Joseph Chamberlain Sixth Form College for regularity  
The Corporation of Joseph Chamberlain Sixth Form College is responsible, under the grant funding agreements 
and contracts with the ESFA and the requirements of the Further & Higher Education Act 1992, subsequent 
legislation and related regulations and guidance, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received are 
applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which 
govern them. The Corporation of Joseph Chamberlain Sixth Form College is also responsible for preparing the 
Governing Body's Statement of Regularity, Propriety and Compliance. 
 
Reporting accountant’s responsibilities for reporting on regularity 
Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical 
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the 
requirements of the Code.  
 
The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and 
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on 
regularity. A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and 
the procedures performed vary in nature and timing from, and are less in extent than for a reasonable assurance 
engagement; consequently a limited assurance engagement does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would 
become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. 
Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion. 
 
We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all 
material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 August 2022 to 31 July 2023 
have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the 
authorities which govern them. 
 
Our work included identification and assessment of the design and operational effectiveness of the controls, 
policies and procedures that have been implemented to ensure compliance with the framework  
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of authorities including the specific requirements of the grant funding agreements and contracts with the ESFA 
and those of any other public funder and high level financial control areas where we identified a material 
irregularity is likely to arise.  We undertook detailed testing, on a sample basis, on the identified areas where a 
material irregularity is likely to arise where such areas are in respect of controls, policies and procedures that apply 
to classes of transactions.   
 
This work was integrated with our audit of the financial statements and evidence was also derived from the conduct 
of that audit to the extent it supports the regularity conclusion. 
  
Use of our report 
This report is made solely to the Corporation of Joseph Chamberlain Sixth Form College and the Secretary of State 
for Education acting through the ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been 
undertaken so that we might state to the Corporation of Joseph Chamberlain Sixth Form College and the Secretary 
of State for Education acting through the ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other 
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the 
Corporation of Joseph Chamberlain Sixth Form College and the Secretary of State for Education acting through 
the ESFA for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed. 
 
 
 
 
 
RSM UK AUDIT LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
103 Colmore Row 
Birmingham 
West Midlands 
B3 3AG 
 
Date: 
 
 
 

RSM UK Audit LLP

20/12/23

https://rsm-uk.eu1.adobesign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAlkJblXMnj2TuJAP8aMs8hCAm1R90abcg
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